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VISION

Our Vision is to provide quality yarn of clothing needs of the people.

OUR MISSION

Chakwal Spinning Mills Ltd. is a yarn manufacturing company committed to produce quality
yarn for quality conscious valued customers. The company's mission is to become progressive
and profitable by adopting best industry practices, latest technology and maintaining fair,
friendly and creative work environment which shall lead to generate sufficient return for the

investors.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 34™ Annual General Meeting of members of CHAKWAL SPINNIING MILLS
LIMITED (the “Company”) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 7/1 E-3,
Main Boulevard, Guiberg |ll, Lahore on Thursday, March 31, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. to transact the
following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To confirm the minutes of last AGM held on February 26,2021

2. To receive and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021,
together with the reports of Directors and Auditor’s report thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2022 and to fix their remuneration. The
retiring auditors Aslam Malik & Company Chartered Accountants have shown their interest in
their reappointment.

4, To transact any other business which may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair

Lahore:
NADEEM ANWAR

Company Secretary
March 10, 2022

NOTES:
1.

The share transfer books for ordinary shares of the Company will be closed from 24-03-2022 to
31-03-2022 (both days inclusive). Valid transfer(s) received in order by our Share Registrar,
Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the closure of
business on 22-03-2022 will be in treated in time. The same or any change in address, if any,
alongside valid copy of CNIC for filing annual return of Company be sent to our share registrar
M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, Tel: 042-
35839182.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint another
member as proxy. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's
registered office not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time of meeting. Members
through CDC appointing proxies must attach attested copy of their Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC) or Passport with the proxy form.

The shareholders through CDC, who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting, are requested
to please bring, original CNIC. CDC account holder will further have to follow the guidelines as
laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.



In case of corporate entity, certified copy of the board of directors’ resolution / power of
attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along
with proxy form of the Company.

. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 shall be uploaded on the Company's
website www.chakwalspinningmills.com twenty one days prior to the date of holding of
Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to SECP Notification S.R.0. 787(1)/ 2014 dated September 8, 2014, members may
inform the Company to receive the Audited Financial Statements and notices through e-mail by
submitting Standard Request Form available on Company's website.

If the Company receives consent from the members holding at least 10% shareholding residing
in a city, to participate in the meeting through video-link at least 07 days prior to date of the
meeting, the Company will arrange facility of video-link in that city subject to availability of
such facility in that city.

. Members are requested to promptly notify the Company of any change in their registered
address.



REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL PERFORMACE OF THE BOARD

AND EFFECTIVNESS OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN ACHIEVING THE

COMPANY'S OBJECTIVES

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited (CSML) has performed
their duties diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has
managed the affairs of the Company in an effective and efficient manner. The Board has
exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act 2017
(previously Companies Ordinance 1984) and the listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) regulations, 2017,

The Board has actively participated in strategic planning processes, enterprise risk
management system, policy development and financial structure, monitoring and
approval;

All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its
committees to strengthen and formalize the corporate decision making process and
particularly all the related party transactions executed by the Company were
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee;

The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its
regular assessment through self-assessment mechanism and/or internal audit
activities;

The Board has prepared and approved the director’s report and has ensured that the
director’s report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statement of the
Company and the content of the director’'s report are in accordance with the
requirement of applicable laws and regulations;

The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and compensation of the Chief Executive
Officer and other key executives including Chief financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of internal Audit;

The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a
timely manner and the Board members are kept abreast of developments between
meetings; and

The Board has exercised its power in light of power assigned to the Board in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations applicable on the Company and the
Board has always prioritized the Compliance with all the applicable laws and
regulation in term of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and
decision making.

The annual evaluation of the Board's performance is assessed based on the key areas
where the Board requires clarity in order to provide high level oversight, including the



strategic process; key business drivers and performing milestones, the global economic
environment and competitive context in which the Company operates; the risks faced

by the Company's business; Board dynamics; capability and information flows. Based
on the aforementioned, it can reasonably be stated that the Board of CSML has played
a key role in ensuring that the Company objectives are not only achieved, but also
exceeded expectations through a joint effort with the management team and guidance
and oversight by the Board and its members. .

/

February 28, 2022 Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jawed
Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited, we are pleased to
submit annual report of your Company together with audited financial statements and
auditors' report thereon for the year ended 30" June 2021.

Financial Performance:

Business operations of the Company has been shut down since from last year due to
insufficient cash flows, increased in preduction cost, reduction in demand in local market
mainly due to Covid-19 pandemic. The Company during the period incurred a net loss after
tax for the year of Rs. 48 million as compares to loss of Rs. 50 million during the last year.
However the company did not incur any cash loss since the loss incurred is approximately
equal to depreciation cost for the year. The directors of the Company always support the
Company in every hour of need, which is also evident from the funds injected by the directors
during the current year amounting to Rs. 51 million which is utilized for payment of
outstanding liabilities of trade payables. The directors are committed that if future economic
environment seems positive they shall put their best efforts to revive the Company’s business
operation in the up-coming period.

Financial Statements Audit

The auditors of the company have given adverse opinion on company's ability as going
concern. The management has prepared accounts of the company on going concern as it is
mitigating the uncertainties through its plans which are expected to be mature in future to
have sustainable business operational activities.

Similarly, the auditors of the company have given modified opinion on certain other matters
including verification of bank outstanding balance confirmation. The company has limitation
in this respect as the company is in litigation with banks. However, the Company has
accounted for all due liabilities of the Banks which correspond with the amount provided in
the suits filed by the banks.

Similarly the management is also committed to address other matters giving rise to the
modification of auditor opinion to get it rectified to the satisfaction of auditors.

Future Qutlook:

The management of the company is making all possible efforts to resume the operations and
get the benefits of positive business environment prevailing in the industry. The management
is very hopeful to get the momentum of sustainable operation in the coming days by putting
all efforts and polling sources of the company.
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Principal Activity
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board of Directors is responsible to oversee the Company’s operations and to devise an
effective strategy to mitigate any potential any potential adverse impact of risks.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise long term finances, trade and other
payables and short term borrowings. The Company’s principal financial assets comprise of
trade debts, advances, short-term deposits, other receivables, cash and bank balances that
arise directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance. The Company has adequately disclosed all the litigation and their expected
outcomes in the financial statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company strongly believes in the integration of Corporate Social Responsibility into its
business, and consistency endeavors to uplift communities that are influenced directly or
indirectly by our business.

Environment, Health and Safety

The Company maintains safe working conditions avoiding the risk to the health of
employees and public at large. The management has maintained safe environment in all its
operations throughout the year and its constantly upgrading their safety and living
facilities.

Safety is a matter of concern for machinery as well as the employees working at plant. Fire
extinguishers and other fire safety equipments have been placed at sites as well as
registered and head office of the Company. Regular drills are performed to ensure
efficiency of fire safety equipments.

Internal Financial Controls
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A system of sound internal control is established and implemented at all levels of the
Company by the Board of Directors. The system of internal control is sound in design for
ensuring achievement of Company’s objectives and operational effectiveness and
efficiency, reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws, regulations and policies.

Related Parties

All related party transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2021 were reviewed
by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance:

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock
Exchange in its Listing Regulations have been adopted by the Company and have been duly
complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed to the Report. However the auditors in
its review report highlighted that the board has not set an effective internal audit function.
Due to shut down of business operations the company has lay off its staff however it will
establish internal audit function on resumption of its operation.

Corporate Governance & Financial Reporting Framework:
As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors are pleased to report that:

i) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fair
state of Company’s operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

ii) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based upon reasonable and
prudent judgment.

iv) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have
been followed in the preparation of financial statements, and any departures there
from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

v) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

vi) Key operating and financial data for the last five years is annexed.

vii) There has been no departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.
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viii) We have been prepared and circulated a statement of ethics and business strategy
among directors and employees.

ix) The Company has neither declared dividend nor issued bonus shares because of loss
sustained by the Company for the year.

x)  Outstanding taxes and levis are given in the notes to the financial statements.
Shareholding Pattern
The share holding pattern as at June 30, 2021 for ordinary shares is annexed.
Appointment of Auditors
M/s. Aslam Malik & Co. Chartered Accountants, Lahore are due to retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment as Auditors for the financial year 2021-2022. The
Audit Committee has recommended for re-appointment of present Auditors.
Composition of Board

1. The total number of directors are 08 as per the following:

a. Male 1 07
b. Female :01

2. The composition of the board is as follows:

a. Executive Directors : 0
b. Other Non-Executive Directors : 05
¢. Independent Directors : 02

Name of Directors

i)  Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jawed (Chairman)

ii)  Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Kaleem (Executive Director)

iii) Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jahangir {Chief Executive Officer)
iv)  Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Tanveer

v)  Mr. Sheikh Magbool Ahmed (Independent Director)

vi)  Mr. Danish Tanveer

vii) Mst. Munaza Kaleem

viii)  Mr. Mohammad Tariq Sufi (Independent Director)

First four directors are exempt from Director’s Training Program, whereas other directors will
duly comply with the requirement of Code of Corporate Governess with respect of Directors’
Training Program.
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Committees of the Board
The Board has made following sub-committees:
Audit Committee Meetings:

i.  Mr. Mohammad Tariq Sufi - (Chairman)
ii.  Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jawed (Member)
ifi.  Mr. Danish Tanveer (Member)
HR and Remuneration Committee Meetings:

i.  Mr. Mohammad Tarig Sufi (Chairman)
ii.  Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Tanveer (Member)
iii.  Ms. Munaza Kaleem (Member)

Significant Features of Directors’ Remuneration

The Board of Directors has approved a formal policy for remuneration of executive directors
depending upon their responsibility in affairs of the Company. The remuneration is
commensurate with their level of responsibility and expertise needed to govern the Company
successfully and to encourage value addition from them.

Acknowledge
Continued diligence and devotion of the staff and workers of the Company and good human

relations at all levels deserve acknowiedgment. The Directors also wish to place on record
their thanks to all the stakeholders for their continued support to the Company.

Vs-—a:ﬂ*’"""’ﬁ/ On behalf of jh}l7rd

February 28, 2022 Khawaja Mohammad Jahangir Mr.Khawaja Mohammad Jawed
Lahore. Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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Statement of Compliance with the_ Listed Companies

{Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company : Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited
Year ending :  June 30, 2021

Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited {the “Company”) has complied with the requirement of the Regulations in

the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 08 as per the following:

a. Male 1 07
b. Female :01

2. The composition of the board is as follows:

a. Executive Directors : 01
b. Other Non-Executive Directors : 05
¢. Independent Directors : 02
Name Category

Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Kaleem

Executive Director

Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jawed

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jahangir

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Tanveer

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Munaza Kaleem

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Danish Tanveer

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sheikh Magbool Ahmed

Independent Director

Mr. Mohammad Tariq Sufi

Independent Director

* Best practices of corporate governance entail having an optimal number and mix of board
members with adequate skills and experience. The current Board of Directors of the Company
adequately meets this requirement. Further, existing independent directors play an effective part
within the Board and make valuable contribution. Therefore, the fraction (2.6) has not been

rounded up.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed

companies, including this Company.

Pagelof3
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4. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the board have heen duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in her absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The board complied with requirements of the Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of board.

8. The board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Directors were appraised of their duties and responsibilities from time to time. All of the Directors
will duly comply with the requirement of Code of Corporate Governance with respect of Directors’
Training Program and the Company is planning to arrange this program for the Director.

10. No appointment of Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit has been
made during the year.

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising members given below:

.  Audit Committee:

i. Mr. Mohammad Tariqg Sufi - Chairman
ii. Mr.Khawaja Mohammad Javed
iii.  Mr. Danish Tanveer

. HR and Remuneration Committee:

i.  Mr. Mohammad Tariq Sufi - Chairman
ii.  Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Tanveer
iii.  Ms. Munaza Kaleem

Page 2 of 3
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CERTIFIED

7/, E-3, Main Boulevard, Gulberg - lll, Lahore, Pakistan.
Tel: +92-42-35757108, 35717510 - 17 Fax: +92-42-35764036, 35764043, 35757105

Email: ksmi@pol.com.pk
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to

the committee for compliance.

14. Due to shut down of business operations, presently the board did not set up an effective internal since
there was no staff for this purpose.

15. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close
relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;.

16. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

17. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with; and

18. The directors shall comply with the provision of Code of Corporate Governess Rules, 2017 in respect of
Director Training Program.

For Chakwal Spinning Mills  Limited

Khawaja Mohammad Javed
Chairman
Lahore: February 24, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited

Review report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies {Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited for the year ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors'
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensued compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately refiect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the
regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the statement of
compliance.

¢ Lahore Head Office: Suite # 18-19 FF Floor, Central Plaza, Civic Centre, New Garden Town, Lahore-Pakistan.
¥ Islamabad Office:  House # 726, Street 34, Margalla Town, off Murree Road, Islamabad. Phone : +92-51-2374282-3
9 Quetta Office: Ist Floer, Haji Fateh Khan Center, Adalat Road, Quetta Ph: +92-81-2823837
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Paragraph Description
Reference
9 The Company has not arranged the directors training program or

obtained the exemption from directors training program from the
commission as required under clause 19 of the regulations

15 The board has not setup an internal audit function as required by
regulation 31 of chapter x of listed Companies Code of Corporate
Governance regulations 2019

bﬁu@w\ Mt‘wm L,@,_}

{Aslam Malik & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Lahore
Date: February 28, 2022

Engagement Partner: Hafiz Muhammad Ahmad
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Chakwal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company)
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the statement of profit or
loss and statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
because of the significance of the matters discussed in the basis of adverse section of our audit report
(a) to (f), the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together
with the notes forming part thereof do not conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and do not give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively do not give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

a) As fully explained in note 16 the company is in litigation with the banking companies. The
company had not worked out and provided the amount of mark-up on the short term borrowings in
these financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. Based on available underlying records,
unavailability of facility letter and non-confirmation of mark-up balances from banking companies,
we were unable to determine with reasonable accuracy the impact on these financial statements of
any disagreement with Banks.

Moreover, due to litigation banks do not confirmed us the balances of short term borrowings (Note
No.14) and the bank facility letter was also not provided to us. Based on available underlying
records, response from the legal counsel and non-confirmation of loan balances from banking
companies, we were unable to determine with reasonable accuracy the impact on these financial
statements of any disagreement.

b) Gratuity payable amounting to Rs. 6,382,803 stated in the (Note 11) to the financial statements.
We had not been provided by the actuarial valuation by the management. Further we have not been
provided with sufficient information and explanations to assess whether any actuarial adjustments
in value should be recognised in respect of the above-mentioned gratuity amount.

Quic -
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finy

Aslam Malik & Co. Continuation Sheet “
- There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to determine whether any
adjustments in value should be made in the financial statements in respect of gratuity. Any
adjustments found to be necessary might have consequential effects on the net assets of the
company as at June 30, 2021, the results of the company for the year then ended and the related

disclosures thereof in the financial statements.

Furthermore the disclosure given by the management in the financial statements is not in
accordance with the International Accounting Standard 19 and lead to departure from international
financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

¢) Unclaimed dividend of Rs. 384,347 (overdue) of previous years has not been deposited into the
government treasury nor has any notification been issued to shareholders.

d) As set out in note 17 to the financial statements, the company holds property, plant and equipment
with reported carrying value of Rs. 755.519 million which is substantial portion of the financial
position. These assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

As disclosed in the accounting policies note 5.5, the company reviews the carrying amount of its
property, plant and equipment at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
that an asset is impaired. If any such indicators exist then, the asset’s recoverable amount should be
estimated by reference to forecast future cash flows and fair value less costs to sell. If the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying value, the asset’s carrying value should be
reduced and an impairment expense recognised.

As per I[FRSs as applicable in Pakistan, there is an indication of Impairment. Because the company
has not determined the recoverable amount of the relevant assets, we are unable to determine
whether the carrying value of these assets should be reduced and a corresponding impairment
expense recognised. Consequently, in the absence of recoverable amount of property plant and
equipment at the reporting date we were unable to quantify the impact with reasonable accuracy on
these financial statements.

€) At the reporting date, the Company's accumulated losses stand at RS. 827,712 million (2020: Rs.
784.259 million) and its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rupees 835.090 million
(2020: 833.033 million). This situation may be further deteriorated if the possible effects of matter
discussed in paragraph (a) to (d) above all accounted for in the financial statements. The Company
has also suspended its operations since March 2020. Further, the financial results show adverse key
financial ratios and the company's court cases are decreed in favour of the banking companies, due
to its inability to comply with lean agreements. The company is also unable to pay short term
financing from banking companies amounting to Rs. 452.989 million and the related finance cost,
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease amounting to Rs. 2.541 million along with the
finance cost, if the execution applications filed by the banking companies are decided by the
courts. At present, there is no formal approved business plan for future periods.

These conditions and events indicate material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. However, as described in Note 3.2,
these financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption. These
conditions lead us to believe that the going concern assumption used in preparation of these
financial statements is inappropriate; consequently, in our opinion, the company cannot be
considered to be a going concern and thus the preparation of these financial statements on a going
concern basis is inappropriate. In our opinion, the financial statements should reflect adjustments
to reduce the value of assets to their recoverable amount and to provide any further liabilities that
may arise. These adjustments are likely to be substantial, and in view of further qualifications
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discussed in paragraphs (a) to (d) above we are unable to determine the quantum of the required
adjustments and provisions with a reasonable degree of accuracy.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for adverse our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters as mention in the basis for adverse opinion section of our report we
have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 2021,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material

Continuation Sheet
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to drawattention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation preciudes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit except for the matters discussed in basis for adverse opinion section, we further
report that in our opinion:
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a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have not been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of theCompany's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)
under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Hafiz
Muhammad Ahmad Saleem-ACA.

(Aslam Malik & Co.)
Chartered Accountants |

Place: Lahore
Date: February 28, 2022
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CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

Page 1 of 31

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized share capital;
140,000,000 (2020: 140,000,000 of Rs. 5/- each) ordinary shares

of Rs.5/- each 700,000,000 700,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 6 607,881,000 607,881,000
Loan from directors 7 42,375,000 42,375,000
Accumulated loss (827,962,439) (784,259,887)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 8 126,437,687 131,310,019

(51,268,752)
Non Current Liabilities

Lease Liability 9 e
Deferred liabilities 10 -

Current Liabilities

(2,693,868)

Trade and other payables 1 279,486,675 329,412,646
Accrued mark- up 12 67,778,697 67,778,697
Short term borrowings 13 477,639,029 426,043,089
Current portion of non current liabilities 37,742,792 37,742,792
Unclaimed dividend 384,347 384,347
Provision for taxation 14 10,232,194 10,232,349
873,263,734 871,593,920
Contingencies and Commitments 15 -
821,994,982 868,900,052
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 755,919,415 801,787,161
Long term loans 17 712,766 712,766
Long term deposits 18 27,839,744 27,839,744

784,071,925
Current Assets

830,339,671

Trade debts 19 324,607 933,497
Loans and advances 20 4,346,292 4,346,292
Tax refunds due from the government 21 23,880,927 23,880,927
Trade depaosits, prepayments and other receivables 22 9,322,935 9,357,935
Cash and bank balances 23 48,296 41,730
37,923,057 38,560,381

=N
821,994,982 " | 868,900,052

P /

The annexed notes fram 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements. : /
—t7 ’
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CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Page 2 of 31

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

Sales 24 - 146,548,532
Cost of sales 25 (45,784,257} (178,973,803}
Gross Loss (45,784,257) (32,425,271)
Distribution cost 26 . {949,461)
Administrative expenses 27 (2,529,403) {14,072,158)

(2,529,403) (15,021,619)
Operating Loss {48,313,660) {47,446,890)
Finance cost 28 (11,224) (28,378)
Other operating expenses 29 (250,000} (800,000)
Loss before Taxation {48,574,884) (48,275,268)
Taxation 30 . (2,198,228)
Loss after Taxation (48,574,B84) (50,473,496)
Loss per Share - Basic & Diluted 3 {0.35) {0.36)

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Loss after taxation (48,574,884} (50,473,496)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year (48,574,884) (50,473,496}

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Fi
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CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Page 4 of 31

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (48,574,884) {48,275,268)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 46,267,746 49,948,903
Finance cost 11,224 28,378
46,278,970 49,977,281
Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes {2,295,914) 1,702,013
{Increase} / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares . 8,782,208
Stock in trade - 7,008,281
Trade debts 608,890 42,792,307
Loans and advances - (748,814)
Tax refunds due from the government . (B65,748B)
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables 35,000 892,004
Increase / (decrease} in current liabilities
Trade and other payables {49,925,971) {98,951,885)
(49,282,081} (1,091,647)
Cash generated (used in) / from operations {51,577,995) 610,366
Finance cost paid (11,224) (28,378)
Gratuity paid . {1,699,550)
Income tax paid (155) (78,332)
Net Cash generated used in Operating Activities {51,589,374) (1,196,094)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Long term loans 4,716,031
Long term deposits . .
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities - 4,716,031

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short term barrowings - net .
Loan from directors and others 51,595,940

(10,307,542)

6,452,305
Net Cash generated / (used in) from Financing Activitles 51,595,940 (3,855,237)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,566 {335,300)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 41,730 377,030
48,296 41,730

—

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.
< TN
r
wﬂ M
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CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Page 5 of 31

Surplus on
Particulars Share Capital ST Loan from Directors i Total
Loss property, plant
& equipment
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2019 607,881,000 {739,172,120) 42,375,000 136,695,748 47,779,628
Other comprehensive loss for the year {50,473,496) (50,473,496}
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment in respect of incremental
depreciation charged in current year - net of
deferred tax 5,385,729 - {5,385,729) -
Balance as at June 30, 2020 607,881,000 {784,259,887) 42,375,000 114,110,019 (2,693,868}
Other comprehensive loss for the Year . (48,574,884) - - (48,574,884}
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment in respect of incremental
depreciation charged in current year - net of
deferred tax - 4,872,332 (4,872,332)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 607,881,000 (827,962,439) 42,375,000 126,437,687 (51,268,752)

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

<
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Note 1
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CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

The Company and its Operations

Note 2

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on January 3%, 1988 as a Public Limited Company. Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchanges Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at 7/1, E-ll, Main Boulevard Gulberg Ill, Lahore, While the
production plants of the Company are located at 49-Km, Multan Road, Bhal Phero. The Company is engaged in the business of textile
spinning.

Impact of COVID-19 on the Financial Statements

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown situation in the country have impacted businesses to varying degrees, having implications
on their operations, financial position, profitability, liquidity and in certain cases, the going concern status. The management has evaluated the
impacts of COVID-19 on the Financial Statements of the Company and has concluded as follows:

As disclosed in note 27, no production was carried out during the year and hense no sales were made during the year. However the management
has evaluated the impacts of COVID-19 on going concern status of the Company and has concluded that the Company is not exposed to any going
concern risk due to COVID-19,

Note 3

Basls of Preparation

kN |

3.2

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued by the Internationat Accounting Standards Board (JASB} as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives fssued
under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed,

Appropriateness of the Going Concern Assumption

The Company has [ncurred loss after tax of Rs. 48,325 million (2020: Rs. 50.473 million) and at year end; its accumulated losses stood
at Rs. 827,712 million {2020: 784,260 million). lts current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 835.091 million (2020: Rs. 833.034
miltion). These factors raise doubts about the Companys ability to continue as a going concern. However, these financiat
statements have been prepared on going concern basis based on the following:

Current Government has planned energy package to provide incentive to textile industry in terms of reduction in energy prices.
Accordingly from next reporting period sui gas and electricity will be provided @ 6.5 5 per mmbtu and 9 Cents per unit respectively.
The management is expecting that these measures would cause a positive impact on the Company's operations.

The SECP has allowed the management to issue shares to sponsors directors against their loan with a bar on divestment of shares for
a period of three years. The directors are interested to negotiate their equity holding to enhance the working capital strength of the
company, for this purpose the directors have lodged an appeal for allowing divestment of equity capital before the SECP's Appellate
Authority, which if altowed will be beneficial for the company to fulfill its cash flow requirements,

The management is negotiating with the banks to reschedule/settle its outstanding liabilities and management is optimistic that
these arrangements will be finalized before the end of next year.

The directors of the Company are committed to provide their support to stabilize the financial conditions of the Company and to cope-
with liquidity crisis which is currently faced by the management.



CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Page 7 of 31
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

. Note 3 - Basis of Preparation ... Contd.

3.3

3.4

3.5

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except certain property, plant and equipment
that have been stated at revatued amount and retirement benefits which have been recognized at present value determined by
actuary. In these financial statements, except for the amounts reflected in the cash flow statement, all transactions have been
accounted for on accrual basis.

Functional currency
These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency.
Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates
and related assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and related assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Accounting estimates are revised in the period in which
such revisions are made. Significant management estimates in these financial statements relate to the useful life and residual values
of property, plant and equipment; revalued amounts of property, plant and equipment; amortization of intangible assets; impairment
of assets; provisions for defined benefit obligations; taxation; and contingent liabilities. However, the management believes that the
change in outcome of estimates would not have a material effect on the amounts disclosed in these financial statements.

Changes in Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Pronouncements

4.1

4.2

Amendments to accounting and reporting standards and Interpretations which are effective during the year ended June 30,
2021

There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect
on the Company’s financial reporting, except as mentioned in note 6 of the financial statements,

Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and relevant to the Company, would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standard or interpretation:

Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation

{Period beginning on or after)

Conceptual Framewaork in IFRS Standards [Amendments] January 1, 2020
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures [Amendments] January 1, 2020
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments [Amendments] January 1, 2020
1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment [Amendments] January 1, 2022
1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets January 1, 2022
[Amendments]
IFRS 16 Leases [Amendments) July 1, 2020
1AS 1 Presentation of Firancial Statements [Amendments]) dJanuary 1, 2020
1AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors January 1, 2020
[Amendments]

Company will assess the impacts of these changes in the period of initial application once such changes become effective for the
company.
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Note 5

Significant Accounting Policies

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

8.5

Employee retirement benefits

The company operates an unfunded and unapproved gratuity scheme for its employees, which is a defined benefit plan based upon
the last salary drawn by an employee. Present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated on the basis of actuarial valuation at
the end of the year. The valuation in these accounts is worked out on the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost methed.

Any Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of other Comprehensive income.
Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any,

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and
loss account except to the extent that relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current

Charge for the current taxation for the year is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account tax
rebates and credits available, if any,

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits are available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to the appropriate extent, if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits would be available to allow all or part of deferred tax assets to be utilized. Tax rates
enacted at the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred income tax.

Property, plant and eguipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment lasses
except free hold land which is stated at Cost. Cost of property, plant and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost
pertaining to the canstructfon and erection period and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets into working condition.

Depreciation is charged to income on reducing balance method at the rates specified in Note 17. Full month's depreciation is charged
on additions during the month, whereas no depreciation is charged on the assets dispesed off during the month. Where an impairment
loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over {ts
estimated useful life,

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and replacements are capitalized.
Gains or losses on disposal of property, ptant and equipment are included in the current year income.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.11

Stock and stores

These have been valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost has been determined as follows:

Stores and spare parts - at moving average cost

Raw materials - at average cost

Work in process - at average manufacturing cost using average cost method

Finished goods - at average manufacturing cost

Goods in transit - at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon

Manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods comprises cost of material, labor and appropriate manufacturing
overheads. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less necessary cost to make the
sale,

Trade debts and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recavery. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss,

Related party transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length at normal commercial
rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare
circumstances where, subject to the approval of the board of directors, it s In the interest of the Company to do so.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company's shareholders is recognized as a fiability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
hand and cash at banks in current accounts.

Revenue recognition

The Company is in the business of sale of textile products. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized at the point of time
when controt of the goods is transferred to the customer (generally on delivery of the goods) at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goads. The Company has generally concluded that it
is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g. warranties). In determining the transaction price for the sale of goads,
the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of Goods

Sale of goods is recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products to the customers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.

Contract assets
Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance abligations by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer gonds to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the
payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the
contract,
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5.12

5.12.1

3.12.141

Financial instruments
Financial assets

All financlal assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting or
settlement date accounting.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at amortized cost, at fair value through other comprehensive
income and at fair value through profit or loss. The classification is based on the Company's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The management determines the classification of its
financial assets at the time of initial recognition,

a) Financlal assets at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income if the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financiat assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

¢} Financlal assets at fair value through profit or {oss

A financial asset is measured at fair vatue through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income. However, the Company can make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in
equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income unless these are held for trading in which case these have to be measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The equity investments of the Company held in short term investments are classified at fair value through profit or loss
because they are frequently traded.

Reclassification

When the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets accordingly.
The Company applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date.

In case of reclassification out of the amortized cost measurement category to fair value through profit or loss measurement category,
fair vatue of the financial asset is measured at the reclassification date, Any gain or loss arising from a difference between the
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognized in profit or loss,

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the amortized cost measurement category,
fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

In case of reclassification out of the amartized cost measurement category to fair value through other comprehensive income
measurement category, fair value of the financial asset is measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a
difference between the previous amortized cost and fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income. The effective interest
rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of the reclassification,

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category to the amortized cost
measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified at (ts fair value at the reclassification date, However, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the financial
asset at the reclassification date. The effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a
result of the reclassification.
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5.12.1.2

5.12.1.3

5.12.1.4

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the fair value through other comprehensive
income measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value,

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category to the fair value through
profit or loss measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at
the reclassification date.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade-date - the date on which the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Except for trade receivables, financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initlally recognized at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognized in the profit and loss account when the Company's right to receive payments is established. Trade
receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if these do not contain a significant financing component in accordance
with IFRS 15. Where the Company uses settlement date accounting for an asset that is subsequently measured at amortized cost, the
asset s recognized initially at its fair value on the trade debt.

Subsequent measurement
for the purpose of measuring financial assets after initial recognition, these are classified into the following categories;

- financial assets at amortized cost;
- financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income; and
- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method. Gain or loss on financial
assets not part of hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognized, reclassified, through
the amortization process or in order to recognize impairment gains or losses.

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or modification
does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial assets “at fair value through other comprehensive income’ are marked to market using the closing market rates and are
carried in the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are
recognized in other comprehensive income, Interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is credited to the statement
of profit or loss. Dividends on equity instruments are credited to the statement of profit or less when the Company's right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried in the
balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising an changes in fair values of these financlal assets are taken to the profit and
loss account in the period in which these arise,

Fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Company measures the investments at cost less impairment in value, if any.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized when:
- the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.



CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Page 12 of 31
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 5 - Significant Accounting Pelicies ... Contd.

5,12.1.5

5.12.2
5.12.2.1

The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in profit or loss.

If the Company transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service
the financial asset for a fee, it recognizes either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the
transferred asset ta the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an assoclated (iability which
cannot be offset with the related asset. The transferred asset and the assoclated ltability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

if the Company's continuing involvement I in only a part of a financial asset, the Company allocate's the previous arrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and thee part it no longer recognizes on
the basis of the relative fair values of thase parts on the date of the transfer. The difference betweer the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognized and the consideration received for the part no longer recogryized is recognized in profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no re?asonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in fts entirety or a portion thereof.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortized cost and through
other comprehensive income, a lease receivable, a contract asset or a loan commitment and a financial guara; tee contract. In case
of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, loss atlowance is recognized in (Ither comprehensive
income and carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position is not reduced.

The Company measures, at each reporting date, the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equa | to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recogni tion. Where the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Company me asures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables or
contract assets that result from transactions under IFRS 15 and lease receivables.

The Company recognizes the amount of expected credit losses {or reversal), that is required to adjust. the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized, in the profit or loss.

Financial lfabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time wien the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost except ‘for financial liabilities at fa/'r
value through profit or loss, financiat labilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or
when the continuing involvenent approach applies, financial guarantee contracts, commitments to proviide a loan at a below-market
interest rate and contingent consideration recognized in a business combination,

The Company does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities,

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value minus transaction costs for all financial liabilitiv2s not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabflities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and
transaction costs are credited in the profit and loss account.
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The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including Company overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

5.12.2.2 Subsequent measurement

5.12.2.3

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial tiabilities at fair value through proflt or loss

Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, are subsequently measured at fair value,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair vatue through profit or loss,

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

The amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of financial liability is presented in other
comprehensive income and the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability is presented in profit or loss,

Financial tiabilitles designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initfal date of
recognition, and only if it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement ar recognition inconsistency or a group of financial
tiabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the Company's key management
personnel, The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial quarantee contracts and commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder

for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts and commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are recognized initially as a liablity
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and
the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Contingent consideration recognized in a business combination
These are subsequently measured at fair value with changes recognized in profit or loss.

All other ligbilities

All other financial labilities are measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains and lesses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the tiability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial tiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substanttally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit and loss account. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

If the Company repurchases a part of a financial liability, the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
liabitity between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is derecognized based on the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the repurchase. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, for the part derecognized is recognized in profit
or loss,
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5.13

5.15

5.16

5.17

i}

Fair value measurement

Fair value s the price that would be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has
access at that date, The fair value of a tability reflects its non-performance risk. When applicable, the Company measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market {s regarded as active if transactions
for the asset or Hability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable Inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorparates all the factors that
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at
initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company
determines that the fair vatue at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a
guoted price In an active market for an identical asset or llability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is credited or charged to the statement of profit or loss on
an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market
data or the transaction 15 closed out.

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Earnings per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share {EPS). Basis EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Dividend to ordinary shareholders

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction form accumutated profit in the statement of changes in equity and as
a liability in the Company's financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors or the
Company's shareholders as the case may be.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial {iabilities

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if the Company
has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a pericd of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
vatue assets. The Company recognizes lease liabllities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the fease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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ii}

iii)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation fs calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment accurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit In the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is premeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change In the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an Index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans.

Short-term leases and leases of fow-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., thase
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of tow value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company Is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the term of the lease transfers
substantially alt the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract Is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis aver the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term,
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Note &
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
121,576,200 121,576,200 Ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each (2020: Rs. 5) fully paid in cash. 607,881,000 £07,881,000

6.1  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the year is as under:

Opening balance 121,576,200 121,576,200
Issued during the year - -
Closing balance 121,576,200 121 ,576,20&
Note 7
Loan from Directors
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Loan from directors 42,375,00_0_ 42,375,000

These interest free loans were obtained from the Directors of the Company to meet working capital requirements of the Company. These loans
are subordinated to finances from the directors and these are repayable at the discretion of the Company after the short term finances availed
from the banks. These are not measured at amortized cost, rather these are treated as equity at face value in accordance with the guideline
provided through TR 32 - "Accounting Directors' Loan™ as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,

Note 8
Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment
2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 131,310,019 136,695,748
Impairment loss during the year = -
Transfer to retained earnings in respect of net incremental depreciation (4,872,332) (5,385,72%9)
Closing balance 126,437,687 131,310,019

Latest revaluation of freehold land has been carried out as at June 30, 2018 by M/s. K.G. Traders (Private) Limited on the basis of their
professional assessment of present market value, based on inquiries made about the cost of land of similar nature, size and location, which
resulted in impairment loss of Rs. 24.293 million, Incremental depreciation charged on revalued fixed assets is transferred to the statement of
changes in equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of incremental depreciation. Incremental depreciation represents the difference
between the actual depreciation on building and the equivalent depreciation based on the historical cost of building.

Note 9
Lease Liability
2021 2020
TG Finance Charge LI Finance Charge
Payments Payments
aea -Rupees.-----......._. P ———
Mot later than one year 2,431,516 65,218 2,431,916 65,218
Later than one year and not later than five years : - - .
2,431,516 65,218 2,431,516 65,218

9.1 This represents lease of Auto Cone with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited. The principal amount of lease amount to Rs. 18 million
carry mark-up @ 13.16% repayable in 36 equal monthly instaliments starting from 18-05-2014, Last instaltment was due on 18-05-2017
which is still cutstanding.
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Note 10
Deferred Liabilities
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Gratuity payable 10.1 6,382,803 6,382,803
Long term advances 10,2 28,993,671 28,993,671
35,376,474 35,376,474
Less: Current portion {35,376,474) (35,376,474}
10.1  Staff Gratuity-Defined Benefit Plan
10.1.1 The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees that pays a lump sum gratuity to members on leaving company's
service after completion of one year of continuous service. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out by TRT Assoclates as on
June 30, 2019, There s only one employee remaining who is eligible for gratulty therefore actuarial valuation was not carried out as
at June 30, 20214,
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
10.1.2 Present value of defined benefit obligation 6,382,803 6,382,803
10.1.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 1st July 6,382,803 8,082,353
Benefit paid . (1,699,550}
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30th June 6,382,803 6,382,803
10.%.4 Amount charge to profit and loss account
Current service cost
Interest cost s =
10.1.5 Allocation of charge for the year
Cost of sales 28 -
Administrative expenses 30 &
10,1.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income are:
Actuarial loss due to experience adjustments & =
10.1.7 Key actuarial assumptions used:
Discount rate S 12.5%
Expected rate of salary increase . 11.5%
Retirement age - 60 Years
10.2  This represents an interest free and unsecured long term advance received from a customer against the exclusive sale commitment of

a particular quality of waste to him for a period of six years. The same has been extended / renewed for a further period of three
years and shall be adjusted in August 2021 or shall be extended / renewed for a further term as mutually agreed between the
parties. The amount of advance is being utilized by the Company in the ordinary course of business. According to IFRS, the amount of
advance should be recorded at amortized cost however the contract shall be expired on August 2021, therefore due to immaterial

impact under IFRS-9, no change is recegnized against this advance.
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Note 11
Trade and Other Payables
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

Creditors - Unsecured 1.1 119,007,269 168,460,168
Accrued labilities 132,358,107 132,395,051
Other liabilities 2,033,396 2,033,396
Contract lfabilities 72,574 512,574
Income tax payable 6,326,667 6,322,795
Sales Tax Payable 19,688,662 19,688,662

the end of any month during the year was Rs. 18,372,069,

279486675 ___ 379,412,696

11.1  This includes an amount of Rs. 2,061,975 (2020: Rs. 2,061,975) and Rs. 16,210,094 (2020: Rs. 15,710,094) due to related party
Kohincor Spinning Mills Limited and Chakwal Textile Mills Limited, The maximum aggregate amount due to these related parties at

Note 12
Accrued Mark-up
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Accrued mark up on:
Liability against assets subject finance lease 174,539 174,539
Short term borrowings 12.1 67,604,158 67,604,158
67,778,697 67,778,697

12,1 The principal amount of the short term borrowings is Rs. 356.949 million which is under litigation, the cost of funds is to be
determined by Banking Court, at the current reporting date therefore no mark-up is charged for the year on the said borrowings.

Note 13
Short Term Borrowings
021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Banking companies - Secured
Running / cash finance 13.1 385,384,477 385,384,477
- Unpresented cheques 13.2 - -
Related parties - Unsecured
- Loan from directors 13.3 92,254,552 40,658,612
477,639,029 426,043,089

13.1  These represent utilized portion of short term finance facilities of Rs. 385 million (2020 Rs. 385 million} available from various banks
under mark up arrangements. These are secured current assets, fixed assets and perscinal guarantees of directors. Mark-up on the
above facilities ranges from 3 months Kibor plus 2% per annum, payable quarterly. These facilities has been expired on September 30,

2016,

13.2  This represents cheques fssued but not presented on the statement of financial position date. These cheques will be honored

subsequent to the statement of financial position date.

13.3  This represents interest free funds obtained from directors to meet working capital requiremants of the Company.

Note 14
Pravision for Taxation - Net
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,232,194 21,442,910
Add:  Provision for the year 14.1 - 2,198,228
Less:  Adjustment against advance tax - {13,408,944)
Balance at the end of the year 10,232,194 10,232,194
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Note 14 - Provision for Taxation - net ... Contd.

14.1  The provision for current year tax represents minimum tax on under section 113 of Income tax ordinance 2001. Sufficient tax
provision has been incorporated in these financial statements.

Note 15
Contingencies and Commitments

Contingencies

15.1  Tax liability for Rs. 4,870,776 (2020: Rs. 4,870,776) has been demanded by the concerned assessing officer for the various assessment
years against which company has filed appeals. No provision for this amount has been made because the management is confident
that the decision shall be in favor of the company,

15.2  Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and Others before the Lahore High Court vide COS No.126873/2018,
wherein the Bank claimed recovery of Rs. 359.375 million inclusive of principal and mark up amounts. This suit is still pending
adjudication. The amount involved in this case is the same as claimed by the Bank. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company and there are good chances of a favorable result in this case. Sufficient provision of markup have been
made in these financial statement,

15.3  The Company has filed a suit against Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited before the Lahore High Court vide COS No.219125/2018,
wherein along with other prayers recovery of Rs. 2,306.246 million has also been claimed. This suit is still pending adjudication.
There is no scope of any loss to the Company in the instant matter. This case is being vigorously pursued by the Company.

Commitments

There is no commitments of the company for the year ended June 30, 2021 {2020: Nil).
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........ T T et i i i i i DTN ececeiiecceveceeiiccr-ieseemammeteseeo-—c-coco-<--lie-c-ee-s-
Factory Colony
T it
PARTICULARS Freehold land | Buildings on | Buildings on |Plant & Machinery| Power House | _“o_h_wa . m.:._._n._ous m:.hxn.“.www:,_ Vehicles Total
free hold land | free hold fand quip quip
OWNED
COST/REVALUED AMOUNT
Balance as at July 01, 2020 82,812,500 321,446,097 104,616,215 1,143,914,89 154,449,284 5,186,925 1,698,383 2,940,455 11,601,040  1,B28,667,795
Additions - o S - e F o . - .
Deletions - - - - 4 . : g - -
Balance as at June 30, 2021 B2,812,500 321,446,097 104,616,215 1,143,914,896 154,449,284 5,186,925 1,698,383 2,940,455 11,601,040 1,828,667,795
DEPRECIATION
Balance as at July 01, 2020 z 228,034,049 57,245,440 545,505,695 97,757,943 2,901,092 1,103,000 2,267,665 9,817,682 1,044,632,566
Charge for the year . 9,341,405 4,737,078 24,920,460 5,669,134 228,583 59,538 67,279 356,672 45,180,149
Balance as at June 30, 2021 7 237,375,454 61,982,518 670,426,155 103,427,077 3,129,675 1,162,538 2,334,944 10,174,354 1,090,012,715
w_ua mﬁwﬂ Dawn Value as at June 82,812,500  B4,072,643 42,633,697 473,488,741 51,022,207 2,057,250 535,845 605511 1,426,686 718,655,080
Rates % = 10% 0% 5% 10% 0% 10% 10% 20%
Right to Use Assets
COST/REVALUED AMOUNT
PLANT AND MACHINERY
Balance as at July 01, 2020 - - - 24,352,205 - - - - - 24,352,205
Additions - - - . - . - 5 B .
Balance as at June 30, 2021 & - - 24,152,205 - - - - - 24,352,205
Depreciation
Balance as at July 01, 2020 . - . 6,600,273 - . - - - 6,600,273
Charge for the year . - - 887,597 - - - . - 887,597
Balance as at June 30, 2021 - - - 7,487,870 - - - - - 7,487,870
Written Down Value as at fune
30, 2021 : - - 16,864,335 . . . . e 16,864,135
UL LD COLA Dot 82,812,500 84,072,643 42,633,697 490,353,076 51,022,207 2,057,250 535,845 605,511 1,426,886 755,519,415

GRAND TOTAL
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ceerereoo-c--- cesesemanasemsscaseenranmnnonoon~ e - ¥ 1 I
Factory Colony
PARTICULARS Freehald land Buildings an Buildings on [Plant & Machinery| Power House m._._.ﬁ_v_o__w_w_..n e _.n.___— n_.__u..onsn _....._.ﬁ_._.“.»_..“ﬂammm:a Vehicles Sub Total
free hold land | free hold land uip quip

OWNED

COST/REVALUED AMDUNT

Balance as at July 01, 2019 82,812,500 321,448,097 104,616,215 1,143,914,896 154,449,284 9,186,925 1,698,383 2,940,455 11,601,040 1,818,667,795
Additions s - - - - A . . o o
Deletions g z . g - . - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2020 82,812,500 321,448,007 104,616,215 1,143,914,896 154,449,284 5,186,925 1,698,383 2,940,455 11,601,040 1,828,667,795
DEPRECIATION

Balance as at July 01, 2019 + 217,654,710 51,982,020 619,273,632 91,458,905 2,647,110 1,016,846 2,192,910 9,371,842 995,617,975
Charge for the year - 10,379,339 5,263,420 26,232,063 6,299,038 253,982 66,154 74,755 445,840 49,014,591
Balance as at June 30, 2020 - 228,034,049 57,245,440 645,505,695 97,757,943 2,901,092 1,103,000 2,267,665 9,817,682 1,044,632,566
wﬂﬁw%u LR LG BE T 82,812,500 93,414,048 47,370,775 498,409,201 56,691,341 2,285,833 595,383 672,790 1,783,358 784,035,229
Rates % - 10% 10% 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 20%

Right to Use Assets

PLANT AND MACHINERY

Balance as at July 01, 2019 - - . 24,352,205 . - - - 24,352,205
Additions - - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2020 - - - 24,152,205 - - - & - 24,352,205
Depreciation

Balance as at Juiy 01, 2019 . . - 5,665,961 - - - - . 5,663,961
Charge for the year - - - 934,312 - - - - - 934,312
Balance as at June 30, 2020 - - - 6,600,273 - - & - - 6,600,273
Written Down Yalue as at June
30, 2020 - - - 17,751,932 - . - - - 17,751,932
s v e 30, 2020 - 82,812,500 93,414,048 47,370,775 516,161,133 56,691,341 2,285,833 595,383 672,790 1,783,358 801,787,161
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16.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 28 45,784,257 49,362,154
Administrative expenses 30 483,489 _i86,749
46,267,746 49,948,903

16.2 There has been no disposal of property, plant and equipment during the current year.

16.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

[ Location / Address | Usage of immovable property | Total Area (In Kanals) | CoveredArea(insq.ft.) |

49-Km, Multan Road, Production unit 132.5 298,440

16.4 As per the valuation report of independent valuer as of June 30, 2018, the forced sales value of revalued assets is Rs. 815.023 million.
The management beliaves that these values approximate to the values as on June 30, 2021, Break-up of forced sale value is as following:

Asset Forced Sale Value (Rs.)
Land 74,531,250
Building 157,742,100
Plant & Machinery 582,750,000
815,023,350

16.5 The revaluation of freehold land, building and plant & machinery was carried out on June 30, 2018 by M/s. K.G. Traders (Pvt) Limited, an
independent valuer on prevaling market prices.

16.6 Had there been no revaluation, the Cost, accumulated depreciation and book values of the revalued assets would have been as follows:

As at June 30, 2021 As at June 30, 2020
PARTICULARS Accumulated Written Down Accumulated | Written Down
Cost Cost

Depreciation Value Depreciation Value

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Land 5,009,292 - 5,009,292 5,009,292 - 5,009,292
Building 356,307,236 265,733,761 90,573,475 356,307,236 255,670,042 100,637,194
Plant and machinery 1,099,851,692 653,429,898 446,421,794 1,099,851,692 629,934,014 469,917,678
Pawer house 145,165,634 100,095,095 45,070,539 145,163,634 95,087,257 50,078,377
Total 1,606,333,854 1,019,258,754 587,075,100 1,606,333,854 980,691,313 625,642,541
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Note 17
Long Term Loans
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Loans to employees - (Secured - considered good)
. Due from executive 17.1 3,528,317 3,528,317
Due from other employees 1,500,741 1,500,741
5,029,058 5,029,038
Less: Current portion
e Due from executives (3,528,317) (3,528,317)
Due from other employees (787,975) {787,975)
{4,316,292) {4,316,292)
712,766 712,766
17.1  Reconciliation of carrying amount of loan to executive:
Opening balance 3,528,317 3,528,317
Disbursement during the year - .
3,528,317 3,528,317
Recoveries during the year - -
Closing Balance 3,528,317 3,528,317

17.2  This represents interest free loans given to executives and other employees for construction of houses and other purposes as per the
Company’s policy. These loans shall be recovered in monthly instatiments from salary and are secured against gratuity balances.

17.3  The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from executive at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 3.528 million (2020 Rs.

3.528 million)

17.4 Long term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortized cost would not be material.

Note 18
Long Term Deposits
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Deposits against:
- Utilities 27,832,744 17,832,744
- Margin on letter of guarantee 7,000 7,000
27,839,744 27,839,744
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Note 19
Trade Debts
021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Local - Unsecured and considered good 19.1 324,607 933,497
19.1  Trade debts do not include any amount due from related parties (2020; Nil).
Note 20
Loans and Advances
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Current portion of loans to employees 17 4,316,292 4,316,292
Advances - Considered good
Suppliers and contractors 30,000 30,000
Employees 0.1 S S
4,346,292 4,346,292
20.1  Amaunt due from directors, chief executive and executives of the Company is Nil (2020: Nil)
Note 21
Tax refunds due from the government
202 2020
Rupees Rupees
Tax deducted at source and advance tax 7,098,105 7,098,105
Sales tax refundable - Net 16,782,822 16,782,822
23,880,927 23,880,927
Note 22
Trade Depasits, Prepayments and Other Receivables
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Security Deposit 2,500,000 2,500,000
Prepayments 429,716 429,716
Other Receivables 22,1 6,393,219 6,428,219

This solely represents amount due from Yousaf Weaving Mills Limited. The maximum aggregate amaount cutstanding during the year

221 as Rs. 6,428,219
Note 23
Cash and Bank Balance
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand . -
Cash at bank - in current accounts 48,296 41,730
48,296 41,730
Note 24
Sales
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Locat - Yarn Sales 171,461,782
Sales tax (24,913,250)
Net sales 171,461,782
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MNaote 25
Cost of Sales
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Raw materials consumed 251 - 90,749,977
Salaries, wages and benefits 25,2 . 11,554,818
Fuel and power - 17,802,974
Store and spares consumed 5,236,973
Packing material 3,545,233
Repairs and maintenance 490,131
Travelling and conveyance - 207,780
Depreciation 16.1 45,784,257 49,362,154
45,784,257 178,950,042
Finished goods
- Opening stock - 23,761
Closing stock s
- 23,761
45,784,257 178,973,803
25.1  Raw materials consumed:
Opening stock 6,984,520
Purchases during the year . 83,765,457
90,749,977
Closing stock - .
- 90,749,977
25,2  This includes Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. Nil) in respect of employee benefits - gratuity scheme,
Note 26
Distribution Cost
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Freight and other charges - 949,461
- 949,461
Note 27
Administrative Expenses
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and benefits 71 650,000 6,107,043
Director's remuneration 673,000 4,000,000
Travelling and conveyance 6,385 18,940
Communication 2,836 262,200
Repairs and maintenance - 267,476
Utitities . 857,713
Printing and stationery 123,500 195,922
Entertainment 210,300 134,863
Yehicle running and maintenance - 723,702
Fees and subscriptions 117,893 682,545
Legal and professional charges 160,000 155,000
Advertisement and publicity 100,000 60,000
Depreciation 16.1 483,489 586,749
2,529,403 14,072,158

27.1

This includes Rs. Nil {2020: Rs, Nil) in respect of employee benefits

- gratuity scheme,
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Note 28
Finance Cost
021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Bank charges and commission 11,224 28,378
11,224 28,378
Note 29 T
Other Qperating Expenses
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Auditors' remuneration 2941 250,000 800,000
29.1  Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 250,000 650,000
Half yearly review and code of corporate governance - 150,000
250,000 800,000
Note 30
Taxation
Current - for the year . 2,198,228
Deferred - for the year s )
- 2,198,228

30.1  The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these financial statements as the Company has
declared accounting loss for the year. Therefore minimum tax @ 1.5% has been provided in these financial statements.

30.2 Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 78.282 million (2020: 64.525 million) arising mainly due to brought forward losses amounting to
Rs. 722.796 (2020: 703.687 million) has not been recognized in the current year, as the attributable temporary differences are not

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Note 3%
Loss per Share
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Loss after taxation Rupees {48,574,884) (50,476,496}
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year Number 140,000,000 143,000,000
Loss per share - basic & diluted Rupees (0.35) {0.36)

31.1  There is no dilution effect on the basic loss per share of the Company as the Company has no such commitments that would result in

dilution of earnings of the Company.
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Note 32

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors’ and Executives

321

32,2

323

Note 33

The aggregate amounts charged in the accounts for the year as remuneration and benefits to the chief executive, directors and
executive of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020
Director Executives Director Executives
Lo 1T T4
Managerial Remuneration - 675,000 2,500,000 2,700,000
House rent allowance . - 1,250,000 -
Medical . . 85,240 -
Utilities . - 164,760 .
Reimbursable expenses . . . 272,189
675,000 4,000,000 2,972,189
Number of persons 1 1 1 1

As per the Companies Act, 2017, an executive is defined as an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic
salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a financiat year,

Neither any director remuneration nor any meeting fee have been paid to any director of the Company.

No remuneration has been paid to chief executive officer of the Company during the year.

Transactions with Related Parties

Note 34

The related parties comprise associated companies, related group companies, directors and key management personnel, Transactions
with related parties and associated companies, other than remuneration and benefits to key management personngt under the terms
of their employment are as follows:

Particulars Relationship 021 2020
Rupees in 000"

Short term funds availed from directors Director 51,396 6,452

Expenses paid by Yousaf Weaving Mills Limited on behalf ) 820

of Chakwal Spinning Mills Associate-Common Directorship

Advance received from Chakwal Textile Mills Limited - 600

Financial Risk Management

34.1

a)

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financiat risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management fs carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as
well as poticies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk

‘Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in forelgn
currency, interest rate, commodity price and equity price that will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

i) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign currencies. The Company has no receivable / (payable) balance in foreign currency.
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Note 34 - Financial Risk Management ... Contd.

b}

ti) Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in marker prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market,
The Company is not exposed to equity and commodity price risk.

it} Interest Rate Risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Company's interest rate risk arises from lang term financing,
lease liabilities and short term borrowings. As the borrowings are obtained at variable rates, these expose the Company to cash flow
interest rate risk.

At the balance sheet date the interest rate prafile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings 385,384,477 385,384,477

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates &t the reporting date would have Increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by Rs.
3.851 million (2020: Rs. 3.854), This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
This analysis is prepared assuming that amounts of assets and liabilities outstanding as at the reporting date have been outstanding
for the entire year.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk thar. one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. Carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date '‘was as follows:-

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Long term loans 712,766 712,766
Long term deposits 17,839,744 27,839,744
Trade debts 324,607 933,497
Loans and advances 4,346,292 4,346,292
Trade deposits and cither receivables 8,893,219 8,928,219
Cash and bank balz,nces 48,296 41,730
The aging of tracie debts at balance sheet date is as follows:
1 - 30 days . -
31 - 60 days = .
61 - 120 davys ’ . .
120 days a nd above 324,607 933,497

324,607 933,497

The Campany believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of
parties and trade debts are subject to specific credit ceilings based on customer credit history,

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if
avaitable) or t o historical information about counter party default rate:
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Name of Bank Rating Agency Shart-tercr:ledi? Ratt\: ng-term
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-t+ AA+
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA Ats Ads
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A1+ AAA

€} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adeguate amount of
committed credit facilities. As at the balance sheet date, the Company had Rs., 385 miltion (2020: Rs., 385 millions) worth short term
borrowing limits available from financial institutions and Rs. 0.048 million (2020: Rs 0.042 million) cash and bank balances. Following
are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments.

Contractual maturities of financial llabilitles as at June 30, 2021

Carrying Contractual Less then Between 5 years
Amount Cash Flows 1 year 1to 5 years and above
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Trade and other payables 279,486,675 279,486,675 279,486,675
Accrued mark- up 67,778,697 67,778,697 67,778,697 -
Short term finances 385,384,477 385,384,477 385,384,477 :
Current portion of non current
\iabilities 37,742,792 37,742,792 37,742,792

Contractual maturities of financial Habilities as at June 30, 2020

Carrying Contractual Less then Between 5 years
Amount Cash Flows 1 year {1 to 5 years and above
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Trade and other payables 329,412,646 329,412,646 329,412,646 - .
Accrued interest 67,778,697 67,778,697 67,778,697 . -
Short term borrowings 385,384,477 385,384,477 385,384,477 . .
Current portion of non current
liabilities 37,742,792 37,742,792 37,742,792 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up
rates effective as at 30th June. The rates of interest mark up have been disclosed in Note 14 to these financial statements.

{d}  Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue.

As at June 30, 2021 the net fair value of all financial assets and financial labilities are estimated to approximate their carrying
values.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date, The fair
values of all other financial assets and liabilities are not considered to be significantly different from their carrying values.

The Company classifies the financial instruments measured in the statement of financial position at fair value in accordance with the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted market prices
Level 2 Valuation techniques (market observable)
Level 3 Valuation techniques (non market observable)
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34.2

34.3

Note 35

Financlal instruments by categories

Financial asset as at amortized cost

Long term loans

Long term deposits

Trade debts

Short term loans to employees
Trade deposits and other receivables
Cash and Bank Balance

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark- up
Shart term borrowings

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Page 30 of 31
2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
712,766 712,766
27,839,744 27,819,744
324,607 931,497
4,346,292 4,346,292
8,893,219 8,928,219
48,296 41,730
279,486,675 329,412,646
67,778,697 67,778,697
385,384,477 385,384,477

Carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate to their fair values. Fair value

is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date,

Capital Risk Management

Note 36

While managing capital, the objectives of the Company are to ensure that it continues to meet the going concern assumption,
enhance sharehotders' wealth and meets stakeholders' expectations. The Company ensures its sustainable growth viz. maintaining
optimal capital structure, keeping its finance cost low, exercising the option of issuing right shares or repurchase shares, if possible,
selling surplus property, plant and equipment without affecting the optimal production and operating level, and regulate its dividend

payout thus maintaining smooth capital management,

In tine with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non current) less cash and cash equivalents.

Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the batance sheet plus net debt.

As on the balance sheet date, the gearing ratio of the Company was as under:

Total borrowings
Cash and bank balances
Net Debt

Equity
Totai capital employed
Gearing Ratio

Entity- Wise Information

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
557,756,821 506,160,881
(48,296) (41,730)
557,708,525 506,119,151
(51,268,752) (2,693,868)
506,439,773 503,425,283
110.12% 100.54%

36.1

36.2

36.3

The Company constitutes of a single reportable segment, the principal ctasse of product is yarn.

Information about geographical areas

The Company does not hald non-current assets in any foreign country. All of the Company sales are local.

Information about major customers

The Company does not have transactions with any external customer which amount to 10 percent or more of its revenues.
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Note 37
Plant Capacity and Production
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Number of spindles installed 33,468 33,468
Installed capacity in 20's count (Kgs) - approximately 11,168,743 11,168,743
- 4M,252

Actual production after conversion into 20's count (Kgs)

It is difficult to describe precisely the under utilization of production capacity in spinning since it fluctuates widely depending on
various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles speed, etc. It also varles according to the pattern of production adopted in

particular year.

Note 38

Number of Employees
2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

Employees as at June 30,
Permanent 381 1 5
Temporary

Average employees during the year

Permanent
Temporary 304
38.1 Includes factory employees as at June 30,

Note 39
Authorization of Financial Statements

These financial statements were authorized for issue on February 28, 2022 by the Board of Birectors of the Company.

Note 40
General

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate presentation of events and transactions for the
purpose of comparison in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

T 2

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINy ALYOFFICER




Sales

Gross Profit / (Loss)

{Loss) / Profit before Taxation
Taxes

(Lass) / Profit after taxes Taxation

Total Assets
Current Liabilities

Share Capital

Loan fron Directors

Accumlated Loss

Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets
Equity

Finance Lease

Deferred Liability

CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
KEY FINACIASL DATA OF LAST FIVE YEARS

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Rs.'000'  Rs.'000' Rs.'000" Rs.'000" Rs.'000"
146,549 1,072,564 201,245 536,175 1,057,846
(32,425) 6,940 (38,524) (290,981} (230,599}
(48,275)  (40,122) (90,745} (357,104}  (332,704)
(198)  (13,409) {2,516) 1,200 (2,032)
(50,473)  (53,531) (93,261)  (355,904)  (334,736)
868,900 | 995,091 1,028,263 | 1,087,699 | 1,482,005
(871,594)| (910,235) (895,714)]  (832,904)| (1,013,957)
(2,694) 84,856 132,549 254,795 468,048
607,881 607,881 200,000 200,000 200,000
42,375 42,375 450,256 450,256 271,256
(784,260)  (739,172) (689,649)  (599,371)  (249,314)
131,310 136,696 140,798 168,074 175,803
(2,694) 47,780 101,405 218,959 397,745
: 37,076 31,144 35,836 70,303
(2,694) 84,856 132,549 254,795 468,048




FORM 34

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2){f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company | CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED |
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 30-06-2021 |
-—--Shareholdings--—

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Taotal Shares Held
193 1 100 9,762
317 101 500 132,186
169 501 1,000 164,477
303 1,001 5,000 927,109
127 5,001 10,000 1,078,742

60 10,001 15,000 784,702
37 15,001 20,000 684,500
27 20,001 25,000 644,600
17 25,001 30,000 482,000
12 30,001 35,000 407,000
14 35,00t 40,000 540,100
6 40,001 45,000 260,200
17 45,001 50,000 831,000
6 50,001 55,000 316,500
4 55,001 60,000 229,000
3 60,001 65,000 189,000
5 65,001 70,000 344,130
10 70,001 75,000 734,500
4 75,001 80,000 318,000
3 80,001 85,000 249,000
3 85,001 90,000 264,500
14 95,001 100,000 1,363,500
3 100,001 105,000 307,000
2 110,001 115,000 227,013
1 115,001 120,000 120,000
1 125,001 130,000 130,000
2 145,001 150,000 299,500
1 175,001 180,000 179,500
2 195,001 200,000 400,000
2 200,001 205,000 405,000
1 210,001 215,000 211,000
2 215,001 220,000 434,000
| 250,001 255,000 254,000
| 260,001 265,000 263,000
2 295,001 300,000 600,000
2 345,001 350,000 700,000
1 385,001 390,000 386,500
1 395,001 400,000 400,000
1 410,001 415,000 412,500
1 455,001 460,000 458,500
1 490,001 495,000 492,000
2 495,001 500,000 1,000,000
1 500,001 505,000 502,500



1 510,001 515,000 514,500
1 660,001 665,000 662,508
1 790,001 795,000 791,000
1 995,001 1,000,000 1,000,000
| 1,250,001 1,255,000 1,250,792
1 3,495,001 3,500,000 3,500,000
1 6,430,001 6,435,000 6,431,750
1 27,270,001 27,275,000 27,273,729
1 60,985,001 60,990,000 60,985,400
1,391 121,576,200
2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 96,056,584 79.0094
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associated Companies, - -
undertakings and related
paities. (Parent Company)
2.3.3 NIT and ICP 662,508 0.5449
2.3.4 Banks Development 5,522 0.0045
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies 54,300 0.0447
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 4,100 0.0034
Funds
2.3.7 Share holdersholding 10% 88,371,142 72.6879
or more
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 24,290,331 19.9795
b. Foreign 0 -
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies 361,801 0.2976
2- Investment Companies 12,000 0.0099
3- Foreign Companies 57,700 0.0475
4- Pension Funds 68,935 0.0567
5- Others 2,419 0.0020



CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2021

No. of Shares

Sr.No. |Name Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties {Name Wise Detail): - -
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detall)
1 ASIAN DEVELOPMENT EQUITY FUND 2,100 0.0017
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED 27,273,729 22.4334
2 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAHANGIR PHINO 6,431,750 5.2803
3 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD KALEEM 61,097 413 50.2544
4 MR. MUHAMMAD TARIQ SUFI 500 0.0004
5 SHEIKH MAQBOOL AHMED 500 0.0004
6 MR. DANISH TANVEER 1,251,292 1.0292
7 MST. MUNAZA KALEEM 500 0.0004
8 MRS. KAUSAR TASNEEM W/O KHWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED 400 0.0003
9 MRS. RUBINA KHANUM WO KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAHANGIR 500 0.0004
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 130,757 0.1076

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company {Name Wise Detail)

8. No. NAME Holding
1 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD KALEEM 61,097,413
2 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED 27,273,729
3 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAHANGIR PHINO 6,431,750

%Age
50.2544
22.4334

5.2903

All trades In the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

Sr. No. Name Sale

1 MR. DANISH TANVEER (CDC) =

Dear Sir, Please check at your end

Purchase
1,250,792




CHAKWAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ONLY FOR INFORMATION

Catepories of Share Holders NOT FOR PRINTING
As on 30th June, 2021
S.No. NAME HOLDPING % AGE
DIRECTORS, CEQO THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDREN
1 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED 27,273,729 22,4334
2 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAHANGIR PHINO 6,431,750 5.2903
3 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD KALEEM 60,985,400 50.1623
KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD KALEEM (CDC) 112,013 0.0921
4 MR. MUHAMMAD TARIQ SUFI 500 0.0004
5 MR. DANISH TANVEER 500 0.0004
MR. DANISH TANVEER (CDC} 1,250,792 1.0288
6 MST. MUNAZA KALEEM 500 0.0004
7 SHEIKH MAQBOOL AHMED 500 0.0004
8 MRS. KAUSAR TASNEEM W/O KHWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED 400 0.0003
9 MRS. RUBINA KHANUM W/0 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAHANGIR 500 0.0004
96,056,584 79.0094
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 0 0.0000
NIT & ICP
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 662,508 0.5449
662,508 0.5449

BANKS. DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON BANKING

FINANCE INSTITUTIONS
1 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 1,600 0.0013
2 NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION 3,500 0.0029
3 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (CDC) 422 0.0003
5,522 0.0045
MODARABA & MUTUAL FUNDS
1 FIRST PRUDENTIAL MODARABA 500 0.0004
2 TRUST MODARABA 1,500 0.0012
3 ASIAN DEVELOPMENT EQUITY FUND 2,100 0.0017
4 FIRST UDL MODARABA (CDC) 0.0000
4,100 0.0034
PENSION FUNDS
1 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (CDC) 68,935 0.0567
INVESTMENT COMPANIES
1 PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY (PRIVATE) LTD. 12,000 0.0099
INSURANCE COMPANIES
1 PRIME INSURANCE CO. LIMITED 2,300 0.0019
2 STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (CDC) 52,000 0.0428
54,300 0.0447
FOREIGN COMPANIES
1 THE PAKISTAN FUND 16,000 0.0132
2 CITIBANK N.A. HONGKONG 41,700 0.0343
57,700 0.0475

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES



TRUST SECURITIES & BROKERAGE (PVT) LTD.
ABA ALI HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)
DALAL SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. {(CDC)

HIGHLINK CAPITAL (PVT) LTD. (CDC})

MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED (CDC)

MRA SECURITIES LIMITED (CDC)

NCC PRE- SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT (CDC)
PYRAMID INVESTMENTS (PVT) LTD. (CDC)

11 RAOSYSTEMS (PVT.) LTD. (CDC)

13 SAAO CAPITAL (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)

14  SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (PRIVATE) LTD. (CDC)

- B S - W R S

OTHERS

1 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST (CDC)

SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL)
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN)

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S.No. NAME
1 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD KALEEM
KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S.Ne. NAME
1 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD KALEEM
2 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAVED
3 KHAWAJA MOHAMMAD JAHANGIR PHINO

During the financial year the trading in shares of the company by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company

Secretary and their spouses and minor children is as follows

Sr.No. Name
1 MR, DANISH TANVEER (CDC)

Dear Sir, Please check at your end

6,700 0.0055
100,000 0.0823
25,000 0.0206

100 0.0001
1 0.0000
105,000 0.0864
47,000 0.0387
15,000 0.0123
45,000 0.0370
17,500 0.0144
500 0.0004
361,801 0.2976
2,419 0.0020
2,419 0.0020
24,290,331 19,9795
0 0.0000
24,290,331 19.9795
121,576,200 100.0000
Holding %oAge
61,097,413 50.2544
27,273,729 22.4334
88,371,142 72.6879
Holding %Age
61,097,413 50.2544
27,273,729 22.4334
6,431,750 5.2903
94,802,892 77.9782
Sale Purchase

- 1,250,792
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